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X FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Constructed in 1842 for Colonel Ebenezer Walters, Curran Hall is a distinguished
example of Greek Revival architecture adapted to the setting of the

Southern frontier. According to long-standing and widely-accepted tradition
this house was designed by the noted Greek Revival architect, Gideon Shryock.

The one-storey main block of the house possesses brick walls that are laid
in stretcher-bond pattern. A small central portico, covered with a low
hipped roof and braced by four squared Doric columns and two Doric pilasters,
projects from the front (north) elevation. The columns were attenuated in
the 1920's to accommodate the placement of brick piers at their bases. The
whole building rests upon a raised foundation. The main block of the house
is capped with a low hipped roof, and one interior chimney on the west side
of the roof survives.

The outstanding feature of the structure must be its symmetrical delicacy
combined with the sense of snug solidity which the five-bay front facade
conveys. Central to the facade is a flat, double-leaf doorway with lights
above the single panels of the doors. A shoulder architrave featuring

Doric pilasters surrounds the entranceway. The shoulder architrave is bordered
on both of its sides by narrow side-lights and is surmounted by a trabeated
(extended) transom. The whole is enclosed in a non-embrasure type architrave,
which consists of symmetrically molded pilasters that are crowned with
crossettes. Four 6/6 sash windows symmetrically flank the entranceway.

Their lintels are formed into flat, radiating, brick voussoirs. The windows
are set over slipsills.

A porch and two later additions are attached to the rear elevation. The porch
was enclosed at an undetermined date. Both additions were originally
auxillary buildings constructed at a date contemporary with the erection of
the main house. They were moved to their present positions - one attached

to the southeast corner of the house and the other connected to the rear
porch - in 1891. Both have gable roofs and bevel-board siding, while the
addition connected to the rear porch has its own lean-to shed addition.

The interior floor plan is the symmetrical, four-room, central-hall type.
The dimensions of the hall are 13' X 41%' X 15%', and those of the four
rooms are a uniform 19' X 20' X 15%'. Each room contains its original
fireplace and classically-designed mantel. The floors retain much of their
original cypress boarding, and the wooden moldings, which are classically
simple and elegant, also retain their original character.

While the interior of the main section of the house is relatively undisturbed,
that of each of the two rear additions has been completely transformed. The
southeast addition, which was originally Colonel Walter's office, is currently
sub-divided into three rooms; the porch addition,which initially served as
servants' quarters, now houses the kitchen and utility room.
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The original grounds of Curran Hall covered two entire city blocks and
contained numerous ancillary buildings. The planning of intervening
years has reduced the lot to a bare minimum surrounding the house

and the modern utility buildings, which include the garage, playhouse
and storage shed. These accessory structures were designed to blend
in harmoniously with the older building. Maximum use is made of the
remaining grounds, with the planting of compact and decorative gardens
that contain a number of historic flowering shrubs and rose bushes.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Curran Hall stands as one of Little Rock's few surviving, antebellum
landmarks. Furthermore, its significance is greatly increased by the
professional skill and national fame of its probable architect, Gideon
Shryock. (According to widely-accepted tradition, Shryock designed the
house.) Great age and architectural significance do not constitute the
entire importance of Curran Hall, for it has served as the home of a State
Supreme Court Justice and a post-reconstruction Arkansas Secretary of State.

Construction on the house began in September, 1842, under the supervision of
its first owner, Colonel Ebenezer Walters, and according to the specifica-
tions of his friend, Gideon Shryock. The Kentuckian, Shryock, was considered
to be one of the foremost Greek Revival architects in America. His classical
design for the state capitol building in Frankfort, Kentucky, (1826-1827)

was universally admired, and in Little Rock the Arkansas state capitol, now
the "Old State House" (1836),stood as another one of his major achievements.
A year after work commenced on Curran Hall, Shryock reportedly drew up the
plans for Trapnall Hall, which besides the "0Old State House" and Curran Hall,
is the only other surviving Shryock building in Little Rock. (That Shryock
designed Trapnall Hall is part of the same tradition which purports him

as designer of Curran Hall.)

Colonel Walters wished Curran Hall to be an "ideal cottage" suited to married
life with his nineteen-year-old bride, Mary. Shryock, complying with the
Colonel's desires, created a house which could not help but impress the

local residents with its symmetrical, yet compact, charm and beauty. One-
hundred-and-thirty years have gently touched Curran Hall, for the building
of the present is nearly identical in exterior detail to the structure that
took shape under the direction of Colonel Walters and Gideon Shryock. The
five-bay front (north)facade symmetrically groups four 6 over 6 sash

windows with radiating voussoirs around a fine and (for Little Rock in 1842)
grand portal. A double-leaf doorway with lights above single-panel doors
centers the portal. The doorway is surrounded by a shoulder architrave,
which in turn is bordered by side lights and a trabeated transom. Acting

as a final encasement is a magnificent, non-embrasure type architrave,
featuring symmetrically moulded pilasters, which are topped by corner blocks.
A small, centrally located Doric portico extends off the front facade. Minor

alterations to the colmns and flooring are the only departures from its
original appearance.

Aside from the wooden portico, the entire one-storey structure is constructed
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of brick. A low hipped roof covers the house. The interior is divided
on the simple, four-room, central-hall plan. The simplicity of the
floor plan is complémented by the unaffected elegance of the interior
moldings and by the classically designed mantels, one of which is placed
in each room. Two small ancillary buildings, which initially sat apart
from the main house, were connected to the rear of Curran Hall in 1891.
While the current size of the grounds is much reduced from the two-city-
block estate of 1842, the grounds which do remain are tastefully devoted
to gardens displaying historic shrubs. Curran Hall was and still is
representative of the height of Greek Revival fashion on the Southern
frontier.

The house was completed in July, 1843, but the Walters never made it their
home. Mary Walters died in premature childbirth shortly before work was
finished on the "ideal cottage". Col. Walters, finding the memories of
his loss to be unbearable, placed his house in the hands of Trustees

and departed for Texas, where he, too, soon died.

James Morre Curran's occupancy of the house that bears his name was brief.
Curran purchased the house in 1849 for his bride, Sophia, who was the
daughter of William Fulton, the last territorial governor of Arkansas and
the state's first U. S. senator. A promising young lawyer, James Curran
never fulfilled his potential; he died at the age of 33, leaving the

estate in the care of his widow. Sophia eventually married one of Curran's
former law partners, George Watkins--a man destined to become a Chief
Justice of the Arkansas Supreme Court. The couple vacated Curran Hall
during the early part of the Civil War and for several years thereafter
the house remained untenanted.

The heirs to the estate of Sophia Curran Watkins (of which Curran Hall was
a part) sold the house to the colorful Jacob Frolich, who was a printer,
Confederate veteran, and member of the night-riding Knights of the White
Camelia. Frolich would eventually be elected to three consecutive terms

as post-reconstruction Secretary of State in Arkansas (1879-1885). Tenure
in state office would be followed by a stint in Washington as Chief Clerk
of Minerals, a position within the Department of the Interior, and later as
Chief Financial Clerk of the Patent Office. However, no period of his

life was more active or troubled than the few reconstruction years he spent
in Curran Hall. Frolich's opposition to the policies of the reconstruction
government in Arkansas was vehement enough for him to be fearful of re-
prisal. He fortified Curran Hall with a group of strategically placed

trap doors, and at night he sheltered his livestock within the confines



F?rm No. 19-300a
(Rev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

FOR NPS USE ONLY

receiveddCT 1 4 1975
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES ﬁ o~
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM DATE ENTERED JAN 1 70

CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER 8 PAGE 2

of the house. These tense times were climaxed by the mysterious murder

of a Mr. Parker, reputedly an informer for the reconstruction government.
Frolich was indicted for the murder, but he averted arrest by fleeing

to Montreal, Canada. Subsequently, with the passing of the reconstruction
government, he returned to Arkansas and was acquited of the charge. He
sold Curran Hall in 188l1.

The new owner was Mary Eliza Bell. Her father, William E. Woodruff, was
the founder of the Arkansas Gazette, the first newspaper to be founded

west of the Mississippi River. Her descendants continue to occupy the
residence.

In Little Rock Curran Hall is considered an outstanding example of ante-
bellum architecture, and the persons associated with the structure were,

as a rule, significant state-wide or locally. In recognition of its

local importance, Curran Hall bears the plaque of the historic preservation
society of Little Rock, the Quapaw Quarter Association, designating it

a nineteenth-century landmark of the city.
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Tate, Averell. Unpublished written statement, 1968; filed at the Office
of Arkansas Historic Preservation. (Handwritten.)
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